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Breadcrumbs  

 The breadcrumb clues as listed below are a n addenda, and are to be 

included as part of papers researched and written by Fred Willard and Phil 

McMullan  and edited by Kathryn Sugg , named òHidden Maps, Hidden Cityó, 

and òConspiracy, Spies, Secrets & Liesó.  òBreadcrumbsó and both papers can 

be found on the website ( www.lost -colony.com ).   

 

Introduction  

 

 The breadcrumbs are an important set of documented facts which all 

relate to two research designs.  òConspiracy, Spies, Secrets & Liesó is an 

ongoing researc h that has many factors that support Sir Walter Raleighõs 

attempt to hide the location of the secret commodity of sassafras on the 

Alligator River.  Enough clues have been found to support continuing research 

on this possible event.  However, at this time,  òConspiracy, Spies, Secrets & 

Liesó has to be presented recognizing that currently it is still preliminary and 

speculative.  The authors believe that the known facts are important to 

document, so that future researchers are aware of a possible paradigm ch ange 

on what motivated the location of where the Lost Colony of 1587 settled, and 

enhance the confirmation that this conspiracy may have occurred.  

 The below breadcrumbs relating to the paper òHidden Maps, Hidden 

Cityó, however, greatly help to confirm tha t the Jamestown colony discovered 

the location of the new city of Raleigh, in the area called òBeechlandó 

(Engelhard, NC, Hyde County, the Dare Co. mainland, and Whipping and Mill 

Tail Creek s today).  The amount of evidence supporting the above represents  

an overwhelming preponderance of the known facts relating to the Lost Colony.  

Other theories relating to where the Lost Colony went only document two or 

three facts that are irrefutable citations, whereas the above two papers have 84 

documented facts, whi ch are all corroborated from multiple sources that are 

cited below as òBreadcrumbs.ó    

 

1.  John Gerard was a famous herbalist and was one of the investors in the 

Roanoke voyages 1.  He also stressed that milkweed was a source for very fine 

silk 2. 1 

2.  Thomas Harriot was enthusiastic about importing medicines from America 

in addition to sassafras .  Harriot thought that sweet gum and other apothecar y 

drugs would be an important source of revenue 3. 

                                                           
1 Karan  Kupperman , Roanoke:  The Abandoned Colony  (New Jersey:  Rowman & Allenheld),  

1984:  100.   
2 Kupperman, 1984:  57.  
3 Kupperman, 1984:  100.  

http://www.lost-colony.com/
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3.  Letter of Ralph Lane to Richard Hakluyt, 1585:  òAnd we have found rich 
commodities and apothecaries and drugs .ó4  

 
4.   In A Brief and True Report , Thomas Harriot mentions secret commodities, 

but he would not divulge their location to those who did not wish him well:  
òTwo more commodities of great value one of  certaintie, and the other in hope, not 
to be planted, but there to be raised & in a short time to be provided and 
prepared, I might have specified.  So like wise of those commodities already set 
downe I might have said more; as of the particular places wh ere they are founde 
----; But because others then welwillers might bee therewithall acquainted, not to 
the good of the action, I haue wittingly ommited them: knowing that to those that 
are well dsposed I have uttered, according to my promise and purpose, f or this 
part sufficient.ó5  
 

5.  Richard Hakluyt to Sir Walter Raleigh letter in 1587:  òOne of your followers 
knows about the ôcertain secret commoditiesõ already discovered by your 
servants .ó62  

 

6.  The most promising commodity for export from the Roano ke Colony was 

sassafras .7 

 

7.  Plans and instructions from England to the Roanoke ventures was to build 

a large five -sided fortification encompassing all of the houses and it was to be 

surrounded with a palisade .8 

 

8.  At Sir Walter Raleighõs request a ceremony took place, proclaiming Manteo 
òGreat Lord and Chief of Dasemunkepeucó (many variant spellings) on the 31 st  

of August 1587 .9  This  enabled Manteo to have supreme authority over all the 
Indians in the area and over 4 million acres of land. It also pro tected the 

location of Raleighõs secret commodities (see Farrar map below  indicating 

                                                           
4  David Beers  Quinn,  The Roanoke Voyages , 2 Vols.  (New York:  Dover Publications ), 

1955:  207 -9, 336 -7.    

5  Thomas Harriot, A Briefe and True Report  of the New  Found Land  of Virginia:  The 
Complete 1590 Theodor  de Bry Edition , Paul Hulton, Ed. ( New York :  Dover ), 1972 :  12; Quinn, 

1955:  314.  

6  Quinn, 1955:  545, 548 -9.   

7 Kupperman, 1984:  48.  

8 Kupperman, 1984:  23.   The Lost Colony Centerõs research design calculates that the 

largest single feature that could have survived 400 years of erosion would be an entrenched 

palisaded fortification.  Based on the amount of breadcrumbs and map research, the research 

design predicts th is feature to be in the southern part of the Beechland area, just east of the 

Alligator River, on the banks of one of the three major waterways:  Swan Creek, Whipping 
Creek, and/or Milltail Creek, with the highest priority in chronological order, as given above.  

9  Quinn, 1955:  504 -5, 531.   
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sassafras  [A], En glish forts  [B and C] , and Dasmansquepuce  [D] 10). The 
Croatan Indians, with the commodification with the colony and the use of 

gunpowder, cannon and guns,  were able to totally replace the political 
confederation of the Secotan Indians (see maps in Breadcrumb # 45).   

 

 
Section of Farrar Map Showing Sassafras Tree, Forts and Dasmansquepuce  

 

9.  The original patents were all listed variously as òWocondalandó and as 
òDasmansquepuce.ó New patents were issued in 1588 with the name 

òAssomacomuc,ó which is taken to mean  the name of the territory that is now 
North Carolina , the area just facing Roanoke Island .  These are all located 
within the designated parame ters of John Whiteõs comment:  òWe are going to 
relocate 50 miles into the main ó.11  They do not refer to Chesapeake. 3 
 

10 .  The name  Assomacomuc  emerged in 1587 and 1589, instead of 
òWingandacoiaó as the presumed Carolina Algonquian territory for the 
mai nland. Variant spellings are : Ossomocomuck, Assamacomock, 
Asamacomock, Assamacomocke .  Professor J. A. Gearyõs transliteration of this 

word is: òthe land òoppositeó or òfacingó.12   This can be construed as the land 
facing Roanoke Island, which would indic ate the land to the west, coinciding 
with the co -authorsõ placement of all the clues referred to above (being 

Beechland , see Breadcrumbs 7, 8 and 9 ).   

                                                           
10  John Farrar, òA mapp of Virginia discovered to ye Hills, and in itõs Latt:  From 35. deg. 

& Ĳ neer Florida, to 41. deg. bounds of New Englandó, collegit:  Domina Virginia Farrar,  sold 

by I. Steve nson at ye Sunne be low Ludgate,  1651 :  http://www2.lib.virginia.edu/ 

exhibits/lewis_clark/exploring/1maps/map6.jpg . 
11  Quinn, 1955:  117, 508, 570, 572 -3, 575, 854.  See Footnote 8 for specific locations.   

12  Quinn, 1955:  117, 853 -4.    

A 

B 

C 

D 

http://www2.lib.virginia.edu/%20exhibits/lewis_clark/exploring/1maps/map6.jpg
http://www2.lib.virginia.edu/%20exhibits/lewis_clark/exploring/1maps/map6.jpg
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11 .  Because of their timing after the colony was settled, Breadcrumbs 9 and 
10 above  are most important  documents related to where the colony moved .134 

These patents for land were issued before and after John White sailed in 1587.  
It is noteworthy because the patents are in the country previously discovered, 

called or now -termed Assomacomouc alias Winganda coia alias Virginia  
(Beechland) , even though that totally contradicts the later -written material of 
John Whiteõs narratives which say that Chesapeake Bay is where they intended 

to go.   
 
12.  òAgreement between Sir Walter Raleigh, Thomas Smythe, etc., and John 

White, etc. for the Continuance  of the City of Raleigh Venture  (1589)ó was the last 

patent granted for the new city of Raleigh two years after the colony 

disappeared. It is important to note that this is for Assomacomouc alias 

Wingandacoia alias Virgi nia, and not for Roanoke  Island , or Chesapeake Bay, 

or the Chowan River (which is 61 miles from Roanoke, not 50) .  There is a 

whole new list  of colonists, based on the current research now being 

performed, which most likely ended up in the new city of Rale igh .145 

 

13.  The importation of sassafras into England brought enormous money 

returns before the market became flooded early in the seventeenth century .15 

 
14.  Queen Elizabeth herself invested in the Roanoke Voy ages, and in addition 

she released Ralph La ne from his military service in Ir eland for the 1585 
voyage, where he was the governor at Roan oke Island , and continued to pay his 

salary .166 
 

15.   Raleigh sells sassafras and makes a killing 17: 

 

The search for, cultivation of, and trade in drugs must tak e 
their place among the economic motives behind the building of the 
British empire in America.  Sassafras was one of the most important 
drugs involved in this process of empire building.  Sassafras gained 
popularity after Monardes described it in his Histo ria Medicinali  in 
1574.  In 1585, Thomas Hariot, man of learning and navigational 
planner of Sir Walter Raleighõs expeditions, proclaimed sassafras a 

                                                           
13  See Quinn, 1955:  506, Doc. 74:  Jan. 7, 1587:  òGrant of arms for the city of Raleigh in 

Virginia, and for its governor and assistants ó.    

14 Quinn, 1955:  569, Doc. 87:  March 7, 1589.   

15  Kupperman, 1984:   135.   It is inexplicable with the new breadcrumb revelations that 

Beechland would not be a high consideration for the location of the new city of Raleigh, as 

indicated by the Farrar map (see Breadcrumb #8 for map), the Percy map and the Zu niga map.   

16  Kupperman , 1984:  18 . 

17  David L. Cowen , òBoom and Bust:  Sassafrasó, Apothecaryõs Cabinet:  News and notes 

from The American Institute of the History of Pharmacy , No 8, Fall 2004:   9.   
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òsovereignó remedy that possessed òmanifold virtuesó and that was 
esteemed in òthe French Poxe [syphilis] . . . the Plague, and many 
other Maladies.ó  

Sassafras attained a phenomenal repute and Sir Walter 
Raleigh became active in its trade and obtained a monopoly in it. Sir 
Walter was selling sassafras for £1,000 to £2,000 a ton and he 
estimated his return as from 800% to 1,000%.  In one voyage in 
1602 he made enough to outfit two more ships, and he fought, 
unsuccessfully apparently, to stop incursions on his patent.  The 
colony of Jamestown almost floundered because seamen, and 
perhaps the colonists themselves , stampeded into what must be 
called a sassafras rush.  Their eagerness for sassafras, it was 
reported, reacted to the òprejudiceó of the colony.  Yet sassafras was 
the first article to be furnished by Virginia to the mother country, and 
between 1616 and 1 619 it and tobacco were the only commodities 
shipped from Virginia.  

But the bubble had burst.  In 1620, Sir Edwyn Sandys, head 
of the Virginia Company, reported that sassafras was worth very 
little and recommended that its production be curtailed.  Its med ical 
reputation persisted, however, and it continued to be exported from 
the American colonies throughout the colonial period.  In 1770 alone 
England imported 76.5 ton s of sassafras worth £2,142.  This  came 
to Ã28 per ton, a far cry from Sir Walterõs figures, no matter how the 
pound may have changed in value.  

 

16.  The death  of Sir Frances Walsingham meant a loss of an important voice 
at Queen Elizabethõs court in 1589 .18  Walsingham was the most important 
promoter of the Roanoke Voyages other than Raleigh or Queen Elizabeth.  

 
17.  White stated twice that the colonist s had no intention of remaining on 
Roanoke Island.  In his 1587 narrative he wrote, òAlso he  (John White) 

alleaged, that seing they intended to remoue 50. miles further vp into the maine 
present ly, he  (John White) being then absent, his stuff and goods, might be both 
spoiled, and most of it  pilfered awayéó197He confirmed this intent in his 1590 
narrative òéfor at my coming away they were prepared to remoue from Roanoke 
50 miles into the maine ó.20    
 

18.  Stephen B. Weeks questioned John Whiteõs claim that Simon Ferdinando, 
in addition to other treacheries, forced the colonists to remain on Roanoke 

                                                           
18  Quinn, 1955:  533 -534.  

19  John White, The Fifth Voyage of M. John White into the West Indies and Parts of America 
called Virginia, in the year 1590 , American Journeys Collection, Document No. AJ -038 

(Wisconsin Historical Society:  Digital Library and Archives), 2003:  317, 

http://www.americanjourneys.org/pdf/AJ -038.pdf ; Quinn, 1955:  533 -534.  

20  Ibid.  

http://www.americanjourneys.org/pdf/AJ-038.pdf
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Island when their intended destination was Chesapeake .21  Weeks offered with 
a litany of Ferdinandoõs (many spellings) services to England, then wrote:  

  
òWalsingham, in his letter of August 12, 1585, speaks of Ferdinando 
in the highest terms, even considering him worthy to be 
commemorated in the inlet which was the ôbeste harborough of all 
the reste,õ and it is not probable that a long period of service 

would have been closed with an act of treachery .ó22  
 

After reading Weeks, one must ask why White would make such a slanderous 
and blatant lie about Ferdinando, when his performance record --- not to 

mention  Ferdinando õs boss, Walsingham --- clearly states this is not true.  8A 
preponderance of other information relates that Fernandez (a.k.a. Ferdinando, 
etc.) is of great importance in promoting the Roanoke Voyages for his boss and 

mentor.  
 

19.  When Governor W hite arrived off Roanoke Island  in 1587 , he said he 
boarded the pinnace only to confer with the 15 men left on the island by Sir 
Richard Grenville  in 1585 .  As he left in the pinnace, òa Gentleman by the 
meanes of Fernando, who was appointed to returne for  England, called to the 
sailers in the pinnesse, charging them not to bring any of the planters backe 
againe, but leave them in the Island .ó23  White was òaccompanied with fortie of 
his best men .ó  The 40 men with White seems more than necessary if he only  

planned a brief visit with the 15 men.    
9 
20 .  Fernandoõs excuse for not going on to Chesapeake was that, òthe Summer 
was farre spent, wherefore hee would land all the planters in no other place .ó24 
Despite his apparent haste to depart, he did not leave until White was ready to 

return to England, and he accompanied White õs ôFlie Boatõ east in his Admiralõs 
ship.  From his arrival at Roanoke Island on July 22, 1587, Fernando remained 
in the service of Governor John White  until September 1 7, 1587 --- almost t wo 

months --- before breaking off to hunt Spanish ships near Flores Island  (see 
Breadcrumbs 22 and 23) .  Many authors have considered the White/Fernando 

argument to be questionable, and as a ploy to hide the location of where they 
really intended to go:  ò50  miles into the main ó.  
 

21.  The colonists clearly intended to build a new ôCityõ in their new location 
because they dismantled and took with them all of their houses.   White wrote: 

ò. . . .they were left in sundry house s, but we found the houses taken do wne.ó25 

                                                           
21  Stephen B. Weeks, The Lost Colony of Roanoke:  Itõs Fate And Survival (New York:  The 

Knickerbocker Press ), 1891:  17.   
22  Ibid.  
23  Wh ite, 1590 /2003 :  97.  
24  Ibid.   

25  White, 1590/2003:  317; Quinn, 1955:  614 . 
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22.  Franci s Walsingham was influential in  promoting the Roanoke ventures  as 
Secretary of State to Queen Elizabeth , as was Willia m Cecil, the secretary of 

State  before him (l ater known as Lord Burgh ley).  They were both responsible 
for many of the investors in the Roanoke Voyages.  Both of Wasingham õs sons-

in -law were investors  as well :  Sir  Philip  Sidney and Christopher Carleill .26   
 
23.  Franci s Walsingham died in 1589 and it was he who encouraged the 

English ventures (Query:  This is the same ti me that Walsinghamõs man 

Simon Fernandez is absent from the scene of the Roanoke ventures) .27  Richard 

Hakluyt, the Elder(?), died in 1591 28 and was also an advocate of the Roanoke 

Ventures.  .ó 
10   

24.  òMysteriouslyó Tramaskecooc village was removed almost immediately from 

the map after the publication of Thomas Harriotõs Brief and True Report ,29 
indicating secret commodities in a secret location.    

 
25.  John Brenton in a paper to Sir Walter Raleigh, 1594:  òA company of men 
manned a new ship and were pai d weekly wages  to ensure they would not go 

after ships for plunder, and they are to secure sassafras and instructed to seek  
out the 1587 colony .ó30   Many voyages ( 238  and counting) to acquire sassafras 

are documented from 15 87  to 1 590 .  

 

26.  Description o f Sassafras Tree (which Thomas Harriot cites in Brief & True ) 
from Nicolás  Monardes :31 11 
 

òThe Tree from whence they cut this Wood, whiche they newly 
brought from the Florida, called Sassafras, is a Tree that groweth to 
bee very great. . . . The tree and b owes are very light, the rinde 
being tasted, hath an excellent sweete smell, and it is somewhat like 
to the smell of Fenell, with muche sweetenesse of taste, and of 
pleasaunt smell insomuch that a little quantity of this Wood being in 
a chamber, filleth th e ayre conteined in it, and the rinde hath some 
sharpnesse of taste the inner part hath little smel, the hogher part 
that containeth the bowes hath leaves: the which be greene after the 
manner of a Figge tree, with three poyntes. . . . They bee of collour a 
sadde Greene, and of a sweet smell, and muche more when they be 

                                                           
26  Kupperman 1984:   18.  
27  Kupperman 1984:  135.  
28  Kupperman, 1984:   142.  
29  See Quinn:   White 1585 Manuscri pt B vis a vi White -DeBry 1590.  
30  Lee Miller, Roanoke:  Solvi ng The Mystery Of The Lost Colony  (New York:  Arcade 

Publishing ), 2000 :  207 -8.  
31  Nicolás  Monardes , Joyfull Newes out of the New -Found Worlde. Wherein are Declared, 

the Rare and Singuler Vertues of Divers Herbs, Trees, Plantes, Oyles & Stones, with their  
Applications, as well to the use of Phisicke as of Chirurgery. Englished by John Frampton  

(London:  E. Allde, by the assigne of Bonham Norton), 1596 ; Apothecaryõs Cabinet:  9.  
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dry. The Indians use to lay them beaten or stamped upon bruises, or 
when any man is beaten with dry blowes: and being dried they are 
used in medicinall thinges .ó 12  

 
 

27.  Written t estimony of confirmation that sassafras is emanating from 

Raleighõs Wingadecao, also known as Assomacomouc :32  

 

Original Latin :  
Donati initio fuimus fragmento huius ligni a Francisco de Zennig, 

Pharmacopola Bruxellensi diligentissimo, mihique amicissimo: sed prox imis his 

                                                           
32  Charles De L'Ecluse (a.k.a. Carolus Clusius), Rariorum Plantorium listeria  (Antwerp:  J. 

Moretus), 1601: 338 and http://imgbase -scd-ulp.u -strasbg.fr/displayimage.php?album= 

338&pos=1 . 

http://imgbase-scd-ulp.u-strasbg.fr/displayimage.php?album=%20338&pos=1
http://imgbase-scd-ulp.u-strasbg.fr/displayimage.php?album=%20338&pos=1
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annis Londino ab aliis etiam amicissimis viris C. V. Richardo Garth, Hugone 
Morgano pharmacopoeo Regio, et Iacobo Gareto mihi Vienna missa magna 

eaque libralia fragmenta, quae odore et sapore faeniculum quidem referebant, 
gustata tamen, plantae il lius saporem magis redere videbantur, quae vulgo 

Draco, nonnullis Tharco dicitur, acetariis familiaris, et cortex eius multo 
magis.   Lignum cum suo cortice adeo Tamarici simile est, ut, nisi odor et sapor 
obstarent, pro eo accipi possit:  cortex interiore parte qua ligno adhaeret 

nigricat, et lavis est; exteriore rugosus et ex cinereo rubescens.   Magis 
vulgatum deinde esse coepit hoc lignum, et arboris integri fere trunci adferri.   
Sed et in Wingandecao, ab Anglis, qui eam occuparant, Virginia dicta, nasci  

intellexi, et inde virgulta eius arboris in Angliam esse delata.  
 

English Translation :3313 (Smoking Gun)  
At first we were given a fragment of this wood by Franciscus de Zennig, a most 
diligent pharmacist in Brussels, and a very good friend of mine.   But in the 

past few years, large fragments were sent from London by other dear friends, C. 
V. Richard Garth, Hugo Morgan the royal pharmacist, and Jacob Garet, to me 

in Vienna, and these fragments were by the pound.   Their smell and flavor 
indeed resembled fennel ; once tasted however, they seemed to give a flavor 
more of that plant commonly called Draco (Dracaena?), known to some as 

Tharco (?), known to makers of vinegar (acids?), and much more its bark.   The 
wood with its bark is so similar to Tamarisk that if it s smell and flavor didnõt 
prevent it, it could be taken for it.   Its bark is blackish on the inside where it 

adheres to the wood, and is lavis (washed out? washable?).   On the exterior, it 
is wrinkled and turns red from ash (when burned?).   This wood has b egun to 
be more common then, and to be brought as almost entire tree trunks .  But it 
has been  learned that it also grows in Wingandecao, called Virginia by 
the English, who occupy it, and that from there, the boughs of this tree 

have been brought to Englan d.  

 
28.   Consignment of Sassafras in 1603 from Raleigh to Nurnberg  

September 10, 1603 :  Sir William Waad, Clerk of the Privy Council wrote to 

Cecil, enclosing a letter which had been intercepted on its way to Raleigh, who 
had been arrested on July 15 th  for treason.  Information in it indicated that 
some of his American sassafras, consigned to Nurnberg for sale, had failed to 

arrive at its destination.  The sassafras in question was several hundred 
weights, which may or may not have even been delivered, bec ause of Raleighõs 

imprisonment .34  

                                                           
33  Personal Correspondence, Dr. John Stevens, May 26, 2011 .  The above smoking gun 

narrative is compelling information as to the conspiracy about the sassafras  being harvested at 

Roanoke.  

34  Miller, 2000:  214, 236, 242, 255, 258 . 



10 
 

29.  Thomas Harriot/Percy Relationship :  Thomas Harriot induced Henry 
Percy (the Earl of Northumberland) into encouraging his epileptic younger 

brother George to go out to Virginia in 1603.   The Earl sent to his younger 
brother clothes, books and papers.  George Percy returned home in 1612.  

Christopher Newport returned from Jamestown in 1609 with one of Powatanõs 
sons.  This could have been the means by which the Zuniga map arriving back 
to England, and also Percyõs map if it was he who drew it.  Conjecture of other 

authors are that he was one of the two men sent by Smith to contact the 
colonists at Panowiok 35 (sic, almost certainly misspelled, and meaning 
Pomeyooc, today a coastal North Carolinian town called Engelhard ).  

 
30 .  As Harriot lay dying he remembered his first patron Sir Walter Raleigh and 

desired that the papers that he had of Raleighõs should be burnt:  òwhereas I 
have divers _______ papers (of which some are in a canvas bagge) of my 
accompts to Sir Walter Ra wley for all which I have discharges or acquitances 
lying in some boxes or other my desire is that they all be burnt --- ó36  The 
question always arises why Thomas Harriot did not publish his journal relating 

to the Roanoke Voyages, when Raleigh was thrown i n the Tower.  Thomas 
Harriot was thought to be part of the conspiracy, and brought in for 
questioning, which in all probability caused him to distance himself from 

Raleigh and the Roanok e Voyages, to save his own life .14  
 

31 .  The notations found on the Zun iga map only 30 years after the colony was 
lost are the most important clues concerning the Lost Colony of 1587.  
Although the notations support the co -authorsõ hypothesis, the rough-drawn 

sketch map lacks definitive locations of the Indian villages becaus e the map is 
not drawn to scale.   The authors of this compilation have proffered that five 

maps  (including newly -discovered ones), when studied together, inexplicably 
determine the location of Pomeyoo c village (a.k.a. òPanawiockó (Zuniga map), 
òPananiockó, òPanawikió, or òPanowiokó, Engelhard today)37  
 

32.  Wo winchopunk, the Paspahegh king told  John Smith  that the Lost 
Colonis ts are well known at an Indian v illage called Panawicke. Beyond 

Roanoke many clothed men who are appareled can be found ( most likely  the 
same village as Pomeyooc  on the John White map  or Pana wiock on the Zuniga 

map ).  Wowinchopunk agreed òto conduct two of our men to a place called 
Panawick i .3815  

                                                           
37  Fred L.  Willard , Phil McMullan, Kathryn Sugg (ed.),  òHidden Maps, Hidden City, Vol. 1 :  

The Jamestown  Connection to the Lost Colonyó (East Carolina University:  Requirement for a 

Multidiscipline Study Degree on Coastal Carolina Indians for Dr. James Kirkland and Dr. 

Karen Mulchaey),  Lost Colony Center for Science & Research, Inc. , 2013:  http://www.lost -
colony.com/currentresearch.html .   

38  Miller, 2000:  214, 236, 242, 255, 258citing Smith, True Relation  CR4.  

39  Miller, 2000:  214 .  

http://www.lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
http://www.lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
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33.  Strachey reports about the 1587 Colony: òThe Powhatton of Roanocke 
slaughtered the col ony at Ritino  (documented as being on the Roanoke River, 

not Chesapeake Bay) .  The king Eyanoco (possibly a Siouan Indian), where all 
but seven were killed.  Four men two boys and a young maid who were sent to 
the Chowan to beat the said Kingõs copper.ó39  Strachey thought this meant 
Pocahontasõs father, but òPowhatan ó can be translated as òpriest ó.  This 

possibly should be reconsidered as saying: òThe priest of Roanoke  ----- ó, placing 
the attack in or near the settlement of Roanoke Island or River  (Beechla nd) . 

 
34.  Th e evidence  stated above in # 33, first presented by William Strachey, 
secretary of the Jamestown colony, is the strongest evidence (to -date) of a 

splinter cell of the Lost Colony being settled.  They are purported to be located 
at Edenton , whic h is across from the Chowanoc River , by this paperõs authors.  
This was reinforced by the discovery of a stone there, which is believed to be a 

message from Eleanor Dare .40   There is seemingly no way to scientifically 
confirm or disprove the Eleanor Dare S tone.  The co -authors of the paper, 

however, strongly agree that th is stone is most likely  authentic .41 

 
35.  Chief Eyanoco and The Lost Colony, 1609 :  Stracheyõs summary is very 

specific ---òAt Ritanoe (?), the weroance Eyanoco (a.k.a. Gepanocon) preserved  
seven of the English alive, fower men, twoo Boyes, and one young Maid, who 
eascaped and fled up the river of Choanoke, to beat his copper, of which he hath 
certayn mines at the said Ritanoe  (a.k.a. Chunis Temoatan (sic.)/Ocanahonan 
(sic. )/Coahohorn ), as a lso at Pannawaiack  (Panawiock/Pomeyooc , presumed to 

be Engelhard, North Carolina today ) are said to  be store of salt stones ó.42                                                          

 

36.  Discovery of the Percy map, and compari ng it with the Zuniga, Whit e, 
Farrar , and Mouzon (indicating òNewportõs Pointó) maps shows that the 

probable  location of Pomeyooc and Tramans kecooc is forthcoming.  How every 
Indian village in North Carolina is named helps to identify locations on the map  
(see Breadcrumb #35 above f or examples) .43  This discovery may be the most 

important clue found, concerning a proffered specific location of where the 
colony settled.   

                                                                                                                                                                                           
40   Haywood J. Pearce, Jr., òNew Light on the Roanoke Colony:  A Preliminary Examination  

of a Stone Found in Chowan County, North Carolina.ó, The Journal of Southern History  4, No. 2  

(Hanover, Pennsylvania:  Sheridan Press), May 1938:  148 -163.  40  Haywood J. Pearce, Jr., 

òNew Light on the Roanoke Colony:  A Preliminary Examination  of a Stone Found in Chowan 
County, North Carolina.ó, The Journal of Southern History  4, No. 2  (Hanover, Pennsylvania:  

Sheridan Press), May 1938:  148 -163.  

41 Ted Bourne (Dir.), òRoanoke:  Search for the Lost Colonyó (History Channel:  

Documentary Special), 2015.  

42  Miller, 2000:  259; Miller, 2000:  236, 242 & 255.  

43  Willard and McMullan, òHidden Maps, Hidden Cityó, 2013.  
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37.  The Percy map represents the coastal area of the North Car olina (Old 
Virginia) of today. 44  The three bodies of water are most likely the Albemarle 

Sound at the top, the Pamlico River is in the middle and the Neuse Rive r at the 
Bottom.  The lower Indian village designated in red  on the map is the village of 

Pomeyooc, between the Pamlico and the A lbemarle Sound, called Engelhard 
today; this is the location of Pan awiock on the Zuniga map, where many òLost 
Colonist só were allegedly located.  Far Creek is the body of water, and the 

Indian site s of Pomeyooc  and Tramanskecooc (its sister village)  are clearly 
depicted and detailed as no other Indian village on this map . 

                      The Percy Map, Annotated To Show Certain Villages 4516 

Every semi -circle on the Percy map , shown above,  is identifiable with a 
known Indian village, derived from the John White map , and it is in the same 
approximate Pamlico/ Albemarle/Neuse River area.  The Indian village  

designated in red  on the original map located above Pomeyooc is the location of 
the Indian village of Tramanskecooc, drawn on the John White map of 1585, 

but vanished /removed  after Thomas Harriot published his Brief and True 
Report of The New Found Land of  Virginia  (see Breadcrumb # 1).  

 
38.  Many letters have recently been identified that have information about the 
new commodities found in 15 85 .  In addition,  the John Farrar Map , published 

                                                           
44  The current location of the original Percy Map is in the Special Collections departmen t 

of the University of Texas.  
45   H. P. Kraus, òVirginia (The Percy Map)ó, Monumenta Cartographica , Cat. 124, No. 28, 

originally drawn by Sir George Percy or Nathan Powell (New York:  Kraus Publications), 1969.  
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in 1650 , was included for the first time in Virgo Triumphans .  Virgo  was a 
seventy -six page book written entirely about the Ralph Lane Colony  of 1585 , 

and many items in the publication are not found in any o f the Roanoke 
Voyages literature, including most importantly, the location of the sassafras on 

the map.  Many unreported voyages by the investors of the Roanoke Colonies 
are involved in reported failed attempts to find the Colony .46 17 

 
39.  On the map in Virgo Triumpans  is a sassafras tree (at the location of the 

Tramansquecooc Indian village on the White 1585 map) and two English 
fortifications located at Fort Landing  (on the Alligator River)  and near the 

Chowanoc Indian village. Farrar clearly depicts a s assafras tree in this one 
location, and no other tree s are identified. 47  The co -authors believe that Farrar 
had access to documents from Thomas Harriotõs lost Chronicles  pertaining to 

the area in question.   This map also relocates the important Indian vil lage of 
Dasmanskepuce (sic.), indicating a new seat of government for Manteo and the 

Croatan.  This probably relates to his proclamation ceremony (see Breadcrumb 
#8). 

 

40 .  William Cumming  reports that John Farrar, mapmaker, had access to 
papers, reports, and information that were not available to others, and also 
that Farrar commissioned Williams to write Virgo Triumphans , and all the 

information about the 1585 Roanoke voyage was obtained from him  (Farrar) .48  

 

41 .  According to author James Sprunt, the Co ree Indians informed the 
Barbados colony at Cape Fear in 1654 that the Lost Colony had survived and 

were living with Hatteras Indians at Croatan.   After their Cape Fear colony 
foundered, they re -established their Barbados -related colony on the north 
shore of the Albemarle Sound (Perquimans and Pasquotank Rivers)  and 

intermarried with the Yeopim/ Hatteras Indians .49  This coincides with John 
Lawsonõs report that these Indians dressed as English, and in the margin of his 

report wrote òHatteras Indians.ó50   Beechland  was a very short distance from 
the Alligator, and the proffered location of the Indian village Tramanskecooc 
(sic.)  (Beechland) . 

                                                           
46  William P. Cumming, The Southeast in Earl y Maps, 3rd Edition  (Chapel Hill:  University 

of North Carolina Press ), 1998 :  148.  

47  Ibid.  

48  Ibid.    

49  James Sprunt, Chronicles of the Cape Fear River: 1660 -1919  (Raleigh, North Carolina: 

Edward Broughton Printing Co.), 1919 .  

50   John D. Lawson, A New Voyage To Carolina , Edited with an Introduction and Notes by 

Hugh Talmage Lefler (Chapel Hill:  University of North Carolina Press), Reprint edition 1967.  
Original title & publication:  A New Voyage to Carolina; Containing the Exact Description and 
Natural History of That Country: Together with the Present State Thereof. And a Journal of a 
Thousand Miles, Travel'd Thro' Several Nations of Indians. Giving a Particular Account of Their 

Customs, M anners, &c. .  London:  [s.n.].  1709:  200 -1.  

http://docsouth.unc.edu/nc/lawson/menu.html
http://docsouth.unc.edu/nc/lawson/menu.html
http://docsouth.unc.edu/nc/lawson/menu.html
http://docsouth.unc.edu/nc/lawson/menu.html
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42 .  There is an Appleton Magazine article about a priest in 1660 who preached 
to white Indians on the Pantego River wh o could speak English:  òIn 1660 the 
Rev. Morgan Jones, of Virginia, was captured by the Tuscarora Indians living in 
North Carolina along the Neuse River.  After some time in captivity he returned 
civilization to make the solemn statement that he had found  a tribe settled on the 
Pantego River, near Cape Atros (Hatteras),  known to their neighbors as the white 
Indians on account of their light color; he tells that they spoke British, in which 
language he preached to them three times a week ó51  (the Pantego is a short 
distance from Beechland, and by canoe travelling on the south watercourse of 

the Alligator River).  
 

43.  Lawsonõs accounts of the native populations are more detailed and are the 
best early records yet found.  He reports that the Paspitank (sic) In dians did 
formally keep cattle and make butter.  He also made a profound statement 

relating specifically to the culture, manners and dress of these Indians, and 
furthermore, that they are different from all other natives he has encountered:  
òThe dresses o f these people are so different, according to the Nation that they 
belong to. . . ó ò. . .which wear Hats, Shooes, Stockings, and Breeches, with very 
tolerable Linnen Shirts, which is not common amongst these . . .ó52   

 
44.  Four to seven hundred Hatteras/Ma ttamuskeet /Yeopim  Indians were 

found to be living in Beechland in 1700 about eight miles from the location of 
the Farrar sassafras tree .5318Research, deeds, oral history, and related Indian 
literature have identified 100 surnames that migrated out of this a rea after an 

endemic ôblack-tongueõ plague struck in 1840.  An interesting phenomenon has 
occurred in that 49 of these same surnames are on the roster of the 1587 John 

White Colony .54 
                                                           

51 Alexander Hume Ford, òThe Finding of Raleighõs Lost Colonyó, Appletonõs Magaine (The 

Library of the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill.  Department:  The Collection of North 

Carolina. Registration #:  Cp970.03,F69f. ID #: 00032198381), July 1907, http://archive.org/ 
stream/findingofraleigh00ford#page/30/mode/2up :  24.  

52 Lawson, 1709:  200 -1.  

53  Fred L. Willard, òRaleighõs 1587 Lost Colony:  Conspiracy, Secrets, Spies & Liesó (East 

Carolina University:  Directed Studies in History for Dr. Kenneth Wilburn), Lost Colony Center 

for Science & Research, Inc., 2009, http://www.lost -colony.com/currentresearch.html :  12 for 
Elks Deed and 22 -3 for other deeds; Catherine Kozak, òNew Hints to Lost Colonists Foundó, 
The Virginian -Pilot (Hampton Roads, VA):  March 31, 2001, www.lost -

colony.com/newspaper.html ; Mary Wood Long, The Five Lost Colonies  (Elizabeth City:  Family 

Research Center), 2000; Ralph Pool, òôLost Colony Wasnõtõ Old Tradition Saysó (Hampton 
Roads, VA:  The Virginian -Pilot), July 3, 1960; and Phil McMullan, òA Search For The Lost 

Colony In Beechlandó (Lost Colony Center for Science & Research: Northeastern NC 

Development),  2002:  http://lost -colony.com/currentresearch.html .   

54  See Fred L. Willard, òLists of Participants in the Roanoke Voyages:  The 1587 

Colonistsó, taken from the National Park Service, Fort Raleigh National Historic Site, Heritage 

Education Program, Roanoke Revisited website :  http://lost -colony.com/namelist.html ; Fred L. 

Willard, òWanted:  Dead Or Aliveó, 1996 to 2006:  http://lost -colony.com/ 

currentresearch.html ; and Long, 2000.  

http://archive.org/%20stream/findingofraleigh00ford#page/30/mode/2up
http://archive.org/%20stream/findingofraleigh00ford#page/30/mode/2up
http://www.lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
http://www.lost-colony.com/newspaper.html
http://www.lost-colony.com/newspaper.html
http://lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
http://lost-colony.com/namelist.html
http://lost-colony.com/%20currentresearch.html
http://lost-colony.com/%20currentresearch.html
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45.  It was well established in the Roanoke Voyage narratives that Mante o and 
the Croatan Indians were close allies of the 1587 colonists.  As shown in the 

text  and the maps on the next page , Steven B. Weeks first documented that the 
Croatan were in control of a vast territory between the Albemarle and the 

Pamlico Sounds after  they supplanted the Secotan Indian Confederation.   
There is ample evidence that the 1587 colonists and the Croatan were allies 
and had villages on the Alligator.  

 
     Dasamonquepeuc on White 1585 A, Croatan on Speed 1676 (center) and Morden 1688 (right )55 19  
 
46.  An anthropology report in 1916 reported discover of the remnants of the 

Matchapungo/Croatan Indians  (in the Beechland/Pantego area) . Pugh was the 
most important surname .5620  

 
47.  In 1958  several hand -hewn (riven) coffins were discovered just a few miles 
from the location of the sassafras tree on the John Farrar map (see p. 26 in 

òSpies & Liesó), and these coffins had Moline  crosses carved on them, which 
were only used during Queen Elizabethõs reign.57 

 
48.  In the Beechland chapter of his 1966 b ook, òLegends of the Outer Banks 
and Tarheel Tidewateró, Judge Charles Whedbee wrote:  òWithin the memory of 
men still living, there was at Beechlands [sic] a tribe of fair -skinned, blue -eyed 
Indians. ó  Was it just coincidence, he asked, that some bore the names of 
                                                           

55  Weeks, 1891.   

56  Frank G. Speck, òRemnants of the Machapunga Indians of North Carolinaó, American 
Anthropologist  Vol. 18, No. #2  (Arlington, VA:  American Anthropological Association), April -

June 1916 :  271 -276.  

57   Phil  McMullan, òBeechland & The Lost Colonyó (North Carolina S tate University History 
Department:  Dr. Holly Brewer , a thesis submitted to the Graduate Faculty of in partial 

fulfillment of the requirements for the Degree of Master of Arts ),  Archaeology  for  the  Lost  

Colony, Lost  Colony  Center  for  Science  and  Research , 2010 :  http://lost -
colony.com/currentresearch.html ; and Charles Whedbee, òBeechlandó, Legends of the Outer 

Banks and Tar Heel Tidewater  (Winston -Salem:  John F. Blair, Publisher ), 1966:  31.  

http://lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
http://lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
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colonists on Governor Whiteõs rolls; names such as John White, Culbert White, 
Thomas Coleman, Richard Taverner, John Gibbs, James Hynde, Michael 

Bishop, Thomas Phevens, and Henry Paine? 58 21  
 

49.  In th e large  Croatan/Hatteras/Mattamuskeet Indian communi ty  at 
Beechland , all have English, Irish and Scottish names.  Of all these surnames, 
49 have been found on the roster of the 1587 Colony .59 

 
50 .  For over a hundred years, scholars have documented their findings  that 
the Lumbee Indians are descendan ts of the Lost Colony , and the co -authors of 

this paper support all this research , with one caveat .6022  That is, the timing of 
the migration westward to Lumberton did not happen in 1587, but it was a 

reaction resulting from the English intrusion and the ens uing kidnapping of 
their children. The kidnapping for the English slave trade starting in 1650 and 
was a leading cause of the Tuscarora War  (which should be correctly called the 

Mattamuskeet War)  in 1711  (see Breadcrumb # 52).61 
 

51 .  Weeks reported that In dians from the Lumbee River fought with Barnwell 
of South Carolina and in Hyde County where Croatan/Hatteras/Mattamuskeet 
Indian were captured and enslaved .62 

 
52 .  In addition, it is strongly believed that another Indian migration took place 
from coastal North Carolina when a devastating outbreak of òblack-tongue 

                                                           
58   Whedbee, 1966:  31; and McMullan, òBeechland & The Lost Colonyó. 
59  Fred L. Willard, òMigration Patterns of Coastal N.C. Indiansó (East Carolina University:  

An independent study in English as a requirement for the East Carolina University Honors 

Program combined with an Interdisciplinary Minor on the study of òThe 1587 Lost Colonyó),  

1998 :  http://www.lost -colony.com/currentresearch.html ; Fred L. Willard, òDisappearing 

Indiansó, Lost Colon y Center for Science & Research, 2000 :  http://www.lost -colony.com/ 
currentresearch.html ; Willard,  òWanted:  Dead or Aliveó.  These surnames were all obtained by 

court documents of deeds, wil ls, birth and death certificates, and narration of early North 

Carolinian records.  The only challenge that can possibly be made is that these documents 

were all inaccurately recorded.  And this rediscovery of the Croatan/Hatteras/Mattamuskeet 

Indians, lon g-thought to be extinct, has won numerous research awards, local, regional, and 
national.  

60  McMullan, òBeechland & The Lost Colonyó. 
61  Fred Willard, The Machapungo Indians and the Barbados Connection 1663 to 1840  (East 

Carolina University:  Directed St udies in History for Dr. Angela Thompson, Lost Colony 

Center for Science & Research, Inc., 2008:  http://www.lost -colony.com/ 

currentresearch.html ; Long, 2000; and McMullan, òBeechland & the Lost Colonyó.  Most 
likely, this is the largest migration to the Lumberton area take place, causing all forty families 

(save one) in Beechland to permanently vacate.  These Indians have never returned to 

Beechland, although a large community in East Lake a re all descendants of these families.  
62  Stephen B.  Weeks, òRaleighõs Settlement on Roanoke Island:  An Historical 

Survival,ó Magazine of American History  25  (Chicago, IL:  A.S. Barnes Company), Feb. 1891 : 

127 -39 ; Robert K. Thomas, A report on research of  Lumbee origins  (UNC-Chapel Hill University, 

NC:  Louis Round Wilson Library, Special Collections), unpublished manuscript, 1976 -1987, 
http://jackgoins.blogspot.co m/2015/05/report -on-lumbee -indians -by-robert.html :  32 .  

 

http://www.lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
http://www.lost-colony.com/%20currentresearch.html
http://www.lost-colony.com/%20currentresearch.html
http://www.lost-colony.com/%20currentresearch.html
http://www.lost-colony.com/%20currentresearch.html
http://jackgoins.blogspot.com/2015/05/report-on-lumbee-indians-by-robert.html
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plagueó (possibly anthrax) occurred in 1840.63   Some may have joined the 
Lumbee, but there is currently no found  documentation of this.  

 
53.  Some very interesting findings have been located in th e wilderness area 

triad of Dare, Hyde, and Tyrell Counties.   These discoveries are all within a few 
miles of the Trama nskecooc Indian village on the White 1585 Map, and also 
correlate exactly with John Whiteõs statement for the new location of the colony 

fifty miles into the mainland.  A very large stand of English walnut trees was 
purported to have been found a nd harvested in the area around 100  years ago, 
reported by the men who harvested the stand that it was half a mile long, and 

all the trees were plan ted in a straight line.  Although English walnut was 
common to the area, no large tracts like this one have ever been found, 

indicating human intervention for intended harvesting.  No known community 
in recorded history has lived in this area .64  
 

54.  It has been reported by the locals and documented by many sources that a 
Mr. Marvin Mason, while logging in the area, stumbled upon a large pile of 

stones.  There are no natural stones in the coastal area, and the location is 
inaccessible by land, and could h ave only been procured in this location from 
ballast stones (something all colonial ships would have had).  As in the 

instance outlined above, the location is within a few miles of the depicted John 
Farrar sassafras tree  and the village of Tramankskecooc  (see p. 26 in òSpies & 
Liesó paper).6523  

 
55.  In the heart of the Beechland area, which is a complete wilderness area 

now, numerous pieces of evidence , facts, and  cultural features have been 
found.  A stand of full -cup oak trees (about 20), were found plant ed in a 
straight line between 2005 and 2009 by the co -authors of this paper  (these 

trees are estimated by the authors to be hundreds of years old) .66  In addition, 
a hand -dug well, grave -markers, riven coffins with Elizabethan crosses, a pile 
of ballast st ones, a hand -dug ditch, and a stand of English walnut and 

chestnut trees have all been reported  in the same general area.  All of these 
cultural features have been documented from multiple sources by the co -

authors of this paper .6724  

                                                           
63  See McMullan, òBeechland & The Lost Colonyó and Willard, òConspiracy, Spies Secrets 

& Liesó. 
64 Morgan H. Harris, Hyde Yesterdays:  A History of Hyde County  (Wilmington:  New 

Hanover Printing &  Publishing, Inc.), 1995:  18.   The co -author Fred Willard has received 

personal communication from many residents of Hyde County who have relayed the same 

information, and every account verifies that this location has never supported a kn own 
community in historic times.  

65  Personal communication with Marco Gibbs (2002 -2012) and Mr. Marvin Masonõs 

brother (1998) by the author Fred Willard.  This stone pile has had two failed expeditions 

attempting to relocate it.  
66   See McMullan, òBeechland & The Lost Colonyó. 
67  Willard, òSpies & Liesó, 2009; and McMullan, òBeechlandó, 2010. 
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56.  Although it has no w become evident, scholars have totally missed that the 
once-powerful Secotan Indian Confederacy was completely supplanted  and 

replaced  by the small Croatan Indian tribe.  It is very doubtful that the Croatan 
could have achieved this feat without a partner ship with the English , utilizing 

gunpowder, cannon, and guns .  The documentation that this did occur can be 
found on the maps on Pages 10, 11, and 27 -29 of òSpies & Liesó at the Lost 
Colony Center website.  The new power center of the Croatan , with the 

inf ormation  from these maps coincides with the location of Pomeyooc and 
Tramanskecooc.  The maps in consideration are the Percy, Zuniga, Mouzon, 
Farrar, and the White 1585 Manuscript Map B.  

 
57.  One of the more significant recent discoveries relating to this  research is 

an Indian village depicted on the Alligator River on early maps.  IKONOS 
imaging has located three sites as possible locations for the colonists to have 
settled with the Croatan, and all three have been identified and confirmed as 

Indian villa ge sites (and located on many of the 16 th - and 17 th -century maps 
along the Alligator).  The IKONOS image resolution is so powerful and acute, it 

can define a human standing from 420 miles in space.  A 16 -foot well and a 
foot -path trail can be seen from thi s altitude (see Buck  Ridge IKO NOS image 
below ).68  25  

 

 
                                                           

68  Catherine Kozak, òECSU Researchers Go High-Tech in Old Searchó (Norfolk, VA:  The 
Virginian -Pilot), March 6, 2005 :  www.lost -colony.com ; and satellite -imaging work and # 58 on 

next page .  

http://www.lost-colony.com/
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58.  In addition to IKONS, new imaging utilizing LIDAR has located five more 
elevated locations large enough to possibly support an Indian village and 117 

colonists .6926This study is multi -disciplined,  and the co -authors have 
completed approximately 50 fieldtrips in attempting to locate these sites.  So 

far, three successful sites with high -mineral soil ridges (an absolute must  for  
growing large crops of corn) have been discovered, and ground -proofing a nd 
field -tests have yielded many English and Indian features and artifacts 

together.  From the volume recovered, the sites seem to have been inhabited for 
a long time by both Native Americans and colonists .70  27  

 
59.  The Lost Colony Centerõs most important research to -date is that the 
coastal Indians did adapt and enculturate, and their descendants survived and 

are still living on their original lands , in and around the Beechland area .71  28  
 
60.      The research papers òDisappearing Indiansó, Migration of Indiansó, and 

òWanted:  Dead Or Aliveó involve new research with the discovery of 
approximately 200 deeds representing the Indian population at its earliest 

documented period with deeds, marriages, and court records.  The William 
Elks, Elizabeth  Elks, Samue l Elks, and Henry Gibbs  deeds are s hown below 
and on the next page .   

       
              William Elks Deed 72                                                      Elizabeth Elks Deed 73  

                                                           
69   Performed under the mentorship of Dr. Mulchaey and the ECU Geography Dept., with 

a six -hour directed studies class.   LIDAR was the primary method used.  
70  Fred Willard, òThe Lost Chronicles of Thomas Harriotó (East Carolina University:  

Directed Studies in History for Dr. Kenneth Wilburn ), Lost Colony Center for Science & 

Research, Inc., 2007 ; McMulland, òBeechlandó, 2010:  www.lost -colony.com .     
71  McMul lan, òBeechland ó; Long, 2000; Pool, 1960; Willard, 2000; Willard, 1998; Willard, 

2008.   Did preliminary investigation at Beechland.  
72  http://www.lost -colony.com/galleryside.html .  
73  Ibid.  

http://www.lost-colony.com/
http://www.lost-colony.com/galleryside.html
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          Samuel Elks Deed 74           Henry Gibbs Deed 75                   

 
All previous research documented in all of North Carolina history books 
proclaim that the Croatan/Hatteras/Mattamuskeet Indians did not survive, 

have no living descendants, and are extinct.  This research has uncovered at 
least five to s even thousand living descendants still living in their original tribal 
areas. 76 29  

 
62.  A report was issued to Sir Thomas Gates in May 1609:  

 
òFour days journey from your fort (at Jamestown) southwards is a 
town called Ohonahorn (probably on the Roanoke Ri ver) Seated 
where the River of Choanoki divideth itself into three branches and 
falleth into the se a of Rawnocke in thirty -five de grees. Here two of 
the best rivers will supply you, besides you are near to the rich 

                                                           
74  Ibid.  

75  Ibid.  

76  Willard,  òDisappearing Indiansó, òMigration of Indiansó, òWanted:  Dead Or Aliveó, and 

òAward For Service To the Professionó, Poster Symposium Award (National Academy of 
Educational Research Corporation With North Carolina Central Unive rsity:  Association for the 

Advancement of Educational Research), 2003:  http://lost -colony.com/award.html ; Fred 

Willard and Carolyn Mahoney, òThe Lost Colonyó, National Academy Invitational Presentation 

(Association for the Advancement of Educational Research:  National Conference), December 4, 

2003:  http://lost -colony.com/award.html ; Fred Willard, òDisappearing Indians & Migration of 

Indiansó (East Carolina University Research Symposium:  1 st  Place - Science, 2 nd  Place - 
Overall; Carolina Central University:  Regional  - 1st  Place Overall ), 2001:  http://lost -

colony.com/ award.html . 

http://lost-colony.com/award.html
http://lost-colony.com/award.html
http://lost-colony.com/%20award.html
http://lost-colony.com/%20award.html
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copper mines of Ritanoc  (a.k.a. Coahohorn ) and may pass them by 
one branch of this river, and by another, Peccarecamicke (possibly 

in Pamlico County, North Carolina , on Green Creek on the Neuse 
River ), where you will find four of the English alive left by sir Walter 
Rawely which es caped the slaug hter (in all probability torture) . 
They live under the protection of a Wiroane called Gepanocon, 
enemy to Powhaton, by whose consent you shall never recover them. 
One of these were worth much labor .ó77 

 
63.  In a deposition after being captured by the Span ish, David Glavin reported 
that Richard Hawkins, when captured, was attempting to obtain sassafras  in 

1595 -6.7830While in the hands of the Spanish at St. Augustine, Glavin claimed 
two additional ships were provisioned to go to Jacan (Roanoke Island) in 1599 , 
carrying supplies of people, ammunition, clothes, implements, axes and spades 

for the settlers there.   
 

Introduction of Voyages and Investors (New Research Pending)  

64.  Further clues to investigate :  many of the Roanoke Colony supporters 

and partners w ho funded Raleigh are listed on the John Smith Map of Old 
Virginia.  Many of these names do not appear on our list below as investors of 

Raleigh.  
 

Investors of the Roanoke Ventures and the Lost Colony  

Although beyond the scope of this paper, it has become obvious that 
many voyages (at least 238 ) were made to the coast of NE North America  

between 1587 and 1 590 .79  This paper has documented that almost all of these 
voyages are associated with Sir Walter Raleigh, who had invested large sums of 

money in the ven tures and knew about the secret commodity of sassafras.  
Future studies to expand this paper should involve investigating more 
thoroughly who the investors were, and what their relationship was with 

Raleigh. 80 

 The various maps shown o n the next few pages illustrate that the 

Croatan Indians could not have advanced their territories into the Secotan 

Confederationõs lands without the help of the English.  Manteo was in charge of 

the land where sassafras was growing in abundance (being a prince and 

                                                           
77  Miller, 2000:  286 .  Please note this is one very important con firmation relating to both 

the Zuniga and the P ercy map, and helps to support  the proffered theory and date that the 

expedition to Pomeyooc was in fact made in 1608.  

78  Miller:  207 -8; and also Quinn, 1955:  834.  

79  See Fred L. Willard and Kathryn L. Sugg, òVoyages to Roanoke and the Lost Colony, 
1584 -1618ó, unpublished manuscript (to be published later) , 2016 . 

80  See òHidden Maps, Hidden City, Vol. 1ó, www.lost -colony.co m. 

http://www.lost-colony.com/
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recognized fellow royal), and the English had  the power he needed to secure 

and expand his territory  (guns, gunpowder, and cannons) . 

          

              John Whiteõs 1585 Map B8131          John Whiteõs 1585 Map A 82  

On the left is John Whiteõs 1585 Map B, while on the right is his 1585 

Map A (an earlier model).  It is essential that these two maps be placed side by 

side in order to see certain significant discrepancies and omissions.  While 

some would say the o nly discrepancies and omissions are position and size of 

certain names (òMentsoó and òDasmanskepuceó being two), a vital port of 

shipping prominently named on Map A isnõt named at all on Map B.  How 

could a master cartographer like John White make such bla tant errors, unless 

they were deliberate?  Answer:  This was most likely done to hide the entrance 

to the main harbor and slipway entrance to Roanoke Island.  But  if so, why?    

                                                           
81  John White, òLa Virginea Parsó, 1585 (British Museum:  Prints and Drawings), Museum 

Registration # 1906,0509.1.3 :    http://www.britishmuseum.org/collectionim ages/AN00026/ 

AN00026038_001_l.jpg   
82 John  White,  òVirginea Parsó, 1585, in William P.  Cum ming,  The Southeast in Early 

Maps, 3rd Edition  (Chapel Hill:  University of North Carolina Press ), 1998:    
http://www.villagecraftsmen.com/whitemap1585001.jpg  and Stefan Lorant, The New World: 
The First Pictures of America , (Duell, Sloan & Pearce, New York), 1946 . 

http://www.britishmuseum.org/collectionimages/AN00026/%20AN00026038_001_l.jpg
http://www.britishmuseum.org/collectionimages/AN00026/%20AN00026038_001_l.jpg
http://www.villagecraftsmen.com/whitemap1585001.jpg
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   The Zuniga Map (Complete) 83  

32  

 This is the complete drawing of what is known as the Zuniga map, 

although Don Pedro de Zunigaõs own words clearly state he is not the author.  
The sidebar he wrote in the upper left corner has since been translated and is 
shown below:  

 
òSIRE:ññ 
òI have thought proper to send Y. M. [Your Majesty]  a plan of Virginia 
[i.e., the òZu¶iga Chart,ó item LVII in Brown] and another of the Fort 
[item LVIII in Brown]  which the English have erected there, together 
with a report  [item LIX in Brown]  given me by a person who has been 
there. Still, I am trying to learn more and I shall report about it. I 
received just now, by way of Flanders, the letter which Y. M. was 
pleased to command to be written to me on the 16th of last month, with 
the Report which contains the reasons then exist ing for sending to the 
galleys the English, who in 1606 were found in our waters, and I shall 
make such use of it as I am commanded by Y. M. Whose Catholic and 
Royal person God preserve as all Christendom requires it.  
òAt Higuete  [Highgate?] September 10. 1608.  

òDon Pedro de Zu¶iga.ó 

                                                           
83  The òZu¶iga Chartó of Virginia, 1608, donated to s ite by Bideford, England's  Mayor  

Andy Powell , June 23, 2009 :  http://www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~molcgdrg/maps/ 
1608z.htm , citing Item LVI, òZu¶iga to Philip IIIó from  Alexander Brown,  Genesis of the United 
States:   a narrative of the movement in England, 1605 -1616, which resulted in the plantation of 
North America by Englishmen, disclosing the contest  betwee n England and Spain for the 
possession of the soil now occupied by the United States of America , Vol . 1 (Boston,  New York:  

Houghton,  Mifflin,  and  Co.), 1890 :  183ð4. 

http://www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~molcgdrg/maps/%201608z.htm
http://www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~molcgdrg/maps/%201608z.htm
http://archive.org/details/genesisofuniteds02brow
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The F rancis Nelson, or Zuniga Map  (Translated Close -Up)8433  

 This close -up of the Zuniga map (full map shown on previous page), has 
been a source of debate for scholars for hundreds of years.  Not on ly is there 

debate over who the true author is (theorized to be either John Smith 85 or one 
Nathan Powell or  Francis Nelson 86), but there is also debate over the exact 

translation of a certain phrase involving a certain king, the òKing of 
Paspaheghó.  The m ost important notation is òPananiockó where other sources 
and this map indicate many of Sir Walter Raleighõs men can be found, with 

corroborating locations identified on the Percy map (considered by Quinn to be 
a sister map to the Zuniga map).  This strong ly supports that Pananiock is the 

Pomeyooc Indian village, drawn by John White in July 1585, at Lake 
Mattamuskeet (Far Creek and Engelhard, NC today).  

                                                           
84 Skaroreh  Katenuaka  Nation, òTuscarora Chronology:  The Zuniga Mapó (Tuscarora 

Nation o f Indians of North Carolina ), uploaded January 2016:   
http://tuscaroranationofindians.org/wp -content/uploads/2016/01/Zuniga -Map.jpg . 

85  The Captain John Smith C hesapeake National Historic Trail , òThe Voyages of Captain 

John Smith:  First Maps of the Chesapeakeó:  http://smithtrail.net/captain -john -smith/ 

smiths -maps/maps -of-the -chesapeake .   
86  Fred L.  Willard, òA Reassessment of the Zuniga Mapó (East Carolina University History 

Department:  Dr. Christopher Oakley - Problems in North Carolina History ), 2008 :  

http://www.lost -colony.com/currentresearch.html .  

http://tuscaroranationofindians.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/01/Zuniga-Map.jpg
http://smithtrail.net/captain-john-smith/%20smiths-maps/maps-of-the-chesapeake
http://smithtrail.net/captain-john-smith/%20smiths-maps/maps-of-the-chesapeake
http://www.lost-colony.com/currentresearch.html
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The 1775 Mouzon Map 8734  

 
 This  is a cropped close -up section of the 1775 Mouzon map.  If you look 

in t he section circled in red, youõll observe the phrase òCroatan Landó.  In 
addition, òNupertnuse Pt.ó is present (also circled).  Christopher Newport was 
in the employment of the John Watts Syndicate (among others), the most 

important investor of the Roanoke  Voyages.  Newport is known to be on a 
voyage intending to stop at Croatan village at least five times, and is also 

documented as having sassafras in his ship on different voyages 88 . 

                                                           
87  Henry Mouzon Jr., Thomas Jeffrys, Ephriam Mitchell and others, òAn Accurate Map of 

North and South Carolina with their Indian Frontiers, Shewing in a distinct manner all the 

Mountains, Rivers, Swamps, Marshes , Bays, Creeks, Harbours, Sandbanks and Soundings on 

the Coasts; with The Roads and Indian Paths; as well as The Boundary or Provincial Lines, The 
Several Townships and other divisions of the Land In Both the Provinces ó (London:  Robert 

Sayer & J. B ennett), 1775, David Rumsey Historical Map Collection:  

http://www.davidrumsey.com/luna/servlet/detail/RUMSEY~8~1~1921~120027: -Composite -of 

--An -Accurate -Map -Of-N;JSESSIONID=406e02a0 -5200 -4a19 -a2fd -922ce505cf6e?trs= 155&qvq 

=q%3Ajefferys+american+atlas%3Bsort%3APub_List_No_InitialSort%2CPub_Date%2CPub_List_

No%2CSeries_No%3Blc%3ARUMSEY%7E8%7E1&mi=30&sort=Pub_List_No_InitialSort%2CPub
_Date%2 CPub_List_No%2CSeries_No . 

88  Willard and Sugg, òVoyagesó. 


